





approved procedures and regulatory requirements. In addition, the
licensee, through the RSO, had not adequately investinated deviations
from approved radiation safety practice and implemented corrective
actions as necessary (Section 14)
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The licensee currently performs 16«18 diagnostic studies per month,
utilizing primarily technetium=99m related products. One or two xenrsn=]132
ventilation studies are also performed monthly, One part-time technologist
performs scans one or two evenings each week, as needed. One part=time
technologist performs RIA tests one or two mornings each week, as needed.

The 1icensee's enforcement history includes an inspection performed on
July 10, 1986 when three violations were identified, as follows:

(a) 10 CFR 35.14 - failure to maintain records of leak tests for sealed
sources;

(b) License Condition No, 16 = failure to survey/wipe test the RIA
laboratory since 1984;

(c) License Condition No. 16 = failure to service or replace the dose
calibrator when accuracy and linearity tests indicated error
exceeding the five percent )imit,

The inspector verified during the current inspection that corrective
actions had been taken for the first viclation; the remaining two
violations were identified as apparent repeat violations during the
current inspection,

An inspection on May 12, 1983 identified six violations, as follows:

(a) License Condition No. 16 = fatlure to test the dose calibrator for
accuracy in 1980, 1981, and 1982 and failure to test the dose
calibrator for 1inearity since March 1980;

(b) Condition No. 16 = failure to survey and wipe test packages
containing radicactive material since February 25, 1980;

(¢) Llicense Condition No. 16 = failure to survey dose preparation/injection
areas daily and failure to perform weekly wipe tests since February 25,
1980,

(d) 10 CFR 35.14(e)(1)(1) = fatlure to test the cesium=137 sealed source
for leakage between September 19, 1979 and May 11, 1983;

(e) License Condition No. 16 = failure to calibrate the survey meter
between February 1980 and September 1982;

(f) License Condition No. 19 - failure to survey radicactive waste prior
to disposal on May 12, 1983.

A "Management Control" paragraph was included with the Notice of Violation
for the May 12, 1983 inspection. In a letter to the NRC dated July 14,
1983, Dr. Levy committed to hiring an independent consulting service,
hiring a college~trained nuclear medicine technologist, and monitoring

the day to day functions of the department through the Radiation Safety
Officer. Violations one and three above were also identified during the
inspections performed on July 10, 1986 and November 15-26, 1990,
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dose calibrator for linearity and geometrical variation following repair
appears to be a violetion of 10 C 5, 3), 35. and 35.50(¢).

10 CFR 35,50(b)(3) requires, in part, that a licensee test each dose
calibrator for linearity upon installation and at least quarterly
thereafter. However, during the period January 20, 1989 through

November 15, 1990, the licensee failed to test the dose calibrator for
linearity. 10 CFR 35.50(d) requires, in part, that a licensee repair

or replace the dose calibrator 1f the accuracy or constancy error exceeds
10%, However, accuracy test records for the dose calibrator dated
September 27, 1988, July 13, 1989, May 24, 1990, and July 23, 1990
indicated error exceeding 10% and the duse celibrator was not repaired or
replaced. In addition, constancy records dated January 9, 1990, July 3,
1990, October 29, 1990 and November 13, 1990 indicated error exceeding

10% and the dose calibrator was not repaired or replaced. On November 15,
1990, the inspector personally performed @ constancy test on the
licensee's dose calibrator using a sealed source containing 155 uCi of
cesium-137. The inspector's measurement was 133 uCi, taking background
into account. This result is (~)14% in error. The licensee's failure to
test the dose calibrator for linearity from Jenuary 20, rou
November 15, 1990 and the failure to repair or replace the dose calibrator

when the accuracy and constancy errors exceeded 10% appears to be a
violation of 10 5FR 35.50(55‘3; and 35.50(d).

During the inspector's review of the licensee's audits on November 15,
1990, 1t appeared that there were problems with the calibration of the
dose calibrator, as discussed above. When the inspector identified the
constancy test e -or of (-)14%, she contacted the Region 111 office and,
after discussing the matter with Dr. Levy, a Confirmatory Action Letter
(CAL) was sent to Dr. Levy on November 16, 1990, to ensure that a
calibrated dose calibrator was obtained before resuming patient studies.

Based on the licensee's use of unit doses of radiopharmaceuticals only
and a review of unit dose records by the inspector, it does not uppear
that any misadministrations occurred as @ result of the problems with the
dose calibrator,

10 CFR 35.650(e)(2) requires the signature of the RSO on records of dose

calibrator accuracy test. However, the accuracy test dated May 24, 1990

lacks the signature of the licensee's RSO. The failure of the RSO to sign

the accuracy test dated May 24, 1990 appears to be a viclation of
S0(e](77.

The violation concerning failure to repair or replace the dose calibrator
when the accuracy tests indicated error exceeding regulatory limits 1s an
apparent repeat violation as it was identified during the inspection
conducted on July 10, 1986,

The violation concerning failure to perform linearity tests on a quarterly
frequency for a period in excess of one year is an apparent repeat
violation as it was identified during the inspection conducted May 12,
1983.

Three apparent viclations were identified.
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Radioactive Package Receipt end Monitoring

The licensee receives unit doses of radiopharmaceuticals on an "as needed"
basis from a Yocal radiopharmacy, Syncor, Ferndale, Michigan. The Svncor
ceurier delivers the licensee's packages during the day only when ti.e
building that the hot lab ‘s located in is attended. The courier unlocks
the hot lab, drops off the package, picks up any returned packages and
locks the hot lab again. A review of package receipt and monitoring
records and interviews with personnel identified no problems, with one
exception. 10 CFR 30.51(a) requires, in part, that each licensee keep
records showing the receipt of byproduct material. However, on August 17,
1989, June 5, 1990, July 10, 1990, September 27, 1990, and nNovem.er 5,
1990 the licensee did not keep records showing the receipt of b/product
material for unit doses of radiopharmaceuticals. The failure to keep
records showing the receipt of byproduct material for unit doses of
radiopharmaceuticals appears to be a violation of 10 CFR 30.51(a).

One apparent violation was identified.

Radiopharmaceutical Dosages

The inspector reviewed records showing radiopharmaceutical unit doses
procured from Syncor from 1989 and 1990. These records consist primarily
of the paper Syncor slips, on which Syncor imprinted and typed a variety
of data for each dose, pasted in a logbook. The NMT wrote the patient
name and other pertinent information in the logbook on the Syncor slips.
10 CFR 35.53(a) and (b) require, in part, that the licensee measure the
activity of each radiopharmaceutical dosage before medical use.

10 CFR 35.53(c) requires, in part, that records of the measurement of
radiopharmaceutical dosages contain the date and time of the measurement
and the initials of the individual who made the record. The inspector
noted that the time of measurement was not recorded for radiopharmaceutical
dosages of byproduct material on August 17, 1989, September 28, 1989,
October 5, 1989, June 5, 1990 and July 10, 1990. In addition, the
individual ~ho made the records of measurement failed to record his
fnitials, The failure to record the time of measurement and the NMT's
initials appears to be a violation of 10 CFR 35.53(c).

One apparent violation was identified.

Airborne Radiation Protection Procedures

The only potentially airborne contaminant used by the licensee 1s xenon=133,
a noble gas used for ventilation studies. The licensee's consultants
appear to have checked the ventilation rates at six month intervals to
verify negative pressure exists in the area where the xenon is used. The
consultants have also posted the clearance time and safety procedures to

be followed in the event of a xenon spill. 10 CFR 35.21(a) requires that
the licensee, through the RSO, ensure that radiation safetv zctivities

are being performed in accordance with approved procedures. The licensee's
procedures for air concentration contro)l of xenon-133 are described in the
application dated May 24, 1990, ana were approved by License Condition
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Staff Qualifications and Training

The qualifications and training for the NMT and the RIA technologist were
reviewed by the fnspector primarily through interviews conducted with
each individual.

10 CFR 35.21(a) requires that the licensee, through the RSO, ensure that
radiation safety activities are being perfo:med in accordance with
approved procedures. The licensee's procedures for training personnel who
work with or in the vicinity of radicactive material are described in the
application dated May 24, 1990 and were approved by License Condition

No. 16 of Amendment No. 20, dated July 30, 1990, which supersedes License
Condition No. 16 of Amendment No. 19, dated May 17, 1985, and Item 12,
"Personnel Training Program," of the referenced application dated

February 12, 1985. The application dated May 24, 1990, Item 8.1,
"Personnel Training Program," requires, in part, that all radiation
workers and ancillary personnel whose duties require them to work iu the
vicinity of radiocactive material receive instruction in certain topics and
at specified frequency:

a. Before assuming duties with, or in the vicinity of radicactive
materials,

b.  During annual refresher training.

¢. Whenever there is a significant change in duties, regulations, or in
the terms of the license.

Item 8.1 further requires that the instruction include, among other
topics:

a. Applicable regulations and license conditions.
b. Appropriate radiation safety procedures,
c. The licensee's in=house work rules.

Item 8.1 states that documentation will be kept on hand for review of the
Tist of topics covered, the date of the instruction, and the names of
those attending.

The NMT has been employed by the licensee for the last six years, since
1984. His qualifications for NMT employment consist primarily of
on=the-job training, as he is not registered with either the American
Registry of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT) or the Nuclear Medicine
Technologist Certification Board (NMTCB)., The NMT currently works for
the licensee one or two e.enings per week, as he is employed full-time at
a different facility during the day. The RIA technologist has worked for
the licensee for 19 years and she has performed the RIA tests for the
last 16 years. She, too, has another day job and works for the licensee
during the mornings only. When questioned by the inspector, neither
technologist appeared to be knowledgeable about applicable provisions in
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10 CFR 19, 20, 30, 31 and 35; the license conditions; and certain work
rules and radfation safety procedures, including requirements pertaining
to area surveys, eating and drinking in areas where radicactive materials
are used and calibration requirements for the dose calibrator. When asked
by the inspector about how often they have personal contact with the
licensee (RSO), both technologists ‘ndicated that such contact was
infrequent. The inspector asked 1f they had received training in these
areas where their knowledge appeared to be deficient and they indicated
that, for the most part, they had not. The NMT, in particular, was
usually not present during the gquarterly consultant audits, due to his
part=time, evening work schedule for the licensee. No records of training
were available during the inspection on wovember 15, 1990. Since the
previous fnspection on July 10, 1986, two significant changes had occurred
that affected the licensed program: revised Part 35 went into effect on
April 1, 1987 and the Ticense wa: renewed on July 30, 1990, incorporating
many new procedural requirements based on revised Part 35 and the newly
revised Regulatory Guide 10.8, dated August 1987. 1n addition to the
required annual training, the staff should have also been trained in
revised Part 35 and the new license, when they went into effect., It
appears that this training has not been performed. The failure to train
two radiation workers in appropriate radiation safety procedures, in-house
work rules, and applicable regulations and license conditions ap ears to be
a_violation of License Condition No. 16 of Amendment No. 19, 10 g?ﬁ 35 71(a)
and License Condition No.16 of Amendment No. 20.

One apparent violation was identified.

Management Oversight For the Radiation Safety Program

Management oversight for the radfation safety program is exercised
through the RSO and the two authorized users.

The licensee contracts with a local firm, Medical Phsics Consultants
(MPC) of Ann Arbor, Michigan, to assist them in completing tasks
associated with the radiation safet pr -am. MPC v1sits the licensee on
a quarterly basis and conducts an aud ¢ of the radiation safety program
in addition to performing routine tasks. =a.dits performed by MPC on
April 25, 1989, November 14, 1989, January 30, 1990, May 24, 1990, and
July 23, 1990 identified some of the violations described in this report,
as noted.

10 CFR 35.21(a) requires, in part, that the licensee, through the RSO,
ensure that radiation safety activities are being performed ir accordance
with approved procedures and regulatory requirements in the daily
operation of the licensee's byproduct material program. 10 CFR 35.21(b)
requires, in part, that the 1icensee's RSO investigate deviations from
approved radiation safety practice and implement corrective action as
necessary. The inspector expressed concern that, since the date of
previous inspection, July 10, 1986, the licensee, through the RSO, has
not adequately ensured that radiation safety activities were being
performed in accordance with approved procedures and regulatory
requirements in the routine operation of the licensee's byproduct
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material program. This failure to exercise adequate management oversight
appears to be the root cause of the violations currently identified. The
licensee's RSO also did not identify and investigate deviations from
approved radiation safety practice and implement corrective action as
necessary, even after problem areas were brought to his attention by the
consultants. The inspector also expressed concern that the licensee had
fafled to implement satisfactory corrective actions for violations
identified during two previous inspections, relating to the dose
calibrator and the performance of area surveys/wipe tests. Evidence of
these problems includes insufficient attention devoted to the dose
calibrator accuracy and linearity tests and RIA lab and nuclear medicine
surveys, such that errors and deviations from approved practice were not
identified, investigated, and corrective actions implemented. The
failure of the RSO to sign certain records, as required, and to heed the
warnings and reminders provided by his consultants appears to be a
centributing factor to the degracdation of the radiation safety program.

10 CFR 35,25(b) states that a licensee that supervises an individual 1s
responsible for the acts and omissions of the supervised individua).

The inspector expressed concern that, since the previous inspection on
July 10, 1986, the licensee has not adequately irccructed supervised
individuals in the principles of radiation ¢2fety appropriate to each
individual's use of byproduct material and periodically reviewed the
supervised individual's use of byproduct material and the records kept
to reflect this use. Evidence of these problems is that two suparvised
individuals were unfamiliar with the regulations in 10 CFR 35 and the
license conditions with respect to the use of licensed material.

One area of concern was identified.

Exit Interview

A preliminary exit interview was conducted on-site with Dr. Levy on
November 15, 1990 and a telephone exit interview was conducted with

Dr. Levy on November 26, 1990, at the conclusion of the inspection. The
apparent violations and area of concern were discussed as well as the NRC
enforcement policy and the Confirmatory Action Letter issued by NRC to
Dr. Levy on November 16, 1990, regarding replacement or repair of his
dose calibrator before resuming patient studies. No proprietary
information, as described in 10 CFR 2.790, was identified by the licensee
to the inspector,

On November 26, 1990, Region [Il determined that the violations
identified during the inspection warranted holding an enforcement
conference with the licensee. During the telephone exit interview with
Or. Levy on November 26, 1990, Dr. Levy and Dr. Shevitz were invited to
attend an enforcement conference in the Region 111 office to discuss the
apparent violations, their planned corrective actions and NRC's
enforcement options. On November 27, 1990, Dr. Levy and his attorney,
Mr. Rock, contacted Region IIl and declined the invitation to the planned
enforcement conference. Mr. Rock stated that he had spoken with Dr, Levy
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and Dr. Levy wished to terminate hi. license with NRC at vhis time,
provided he could obtain a general license registration cer.ificate in
order to continue his RIA tests for patients, Dr. Levy assured NRC that
he had not resumed nuclear medi.ine patient studies and that e would not
resume them. On November 29. 1990, a telephone conference ca. 1 was
conducted between D . Levy and Mr. Rock and Mr. John Grobe ang other
members of the Reg on 170 staff to discuss, in detafl, Dr. Lev: 's
intentions to terrinz.e the license. During this call, Mr. Rock stated
that he and Dr. L :vy planned to meet with the MPC consultants on

November 29, 1997 to coordinate the tasks associated with termination of
the specific lic:nse. including the authorized t.-ansfer of the sealed
source, performince of the close-out survey, and completion of the Form
NRC 314. Mr. R ck agreed to submit the termination -~equest promptly upon
the receipt of ir. Levy's general license registration certificate.
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